
THE UNITED STATES
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AG NCY

REGION III

In the Matter of:

GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION

Respondent. CONSENT AGREEMENT

EPA Docket N RCRA-03-2008-0130

I

I. STATUTORY AUTHORITY.
I "
I '

This Consent Agreement is entered into by the Director, Waste and Chemicals
Management Division, U.S. Environmental Protection Agenc~l,Region III ("EPA" or
"Complainant") and General Motors Corporation ("General M .tors" or "Respondent")
pursuant to Section 3008('1) ofthe Solid Waste Disposal Act, ommonly known as the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA") of 1976,~ amended by inter alia,
the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984 (collecti ely referred to hereinafter
as "RCRA"), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, and the Revocar'OnlTermination or
Suspension of Permits ("Consolidated Rules of Practice"), 40 .F.R. Part 22, including,
specifically, 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22. 18(b)(2) and (3). ,

I I~

This CAFO addresses alleged violations by Respondent ofRC Subtitle C, 42 U.S.C.
§§ 6921-693ge, and the Delaware Regulations Governing Hazatdous Waste ("DRGHW")
authorized by EPA pursuant to RCRA Section 3006, 42 U.S.C. § 6926 (see 53 Fed. Reg.
23837 (June 8,1984),61 Fed. Reg. 41345 (August 8,1996),63 Fed. Reg. 44152 (August
18,1998),65 Fed. Reg. 42871 (July 12, 2000),67 Fed. Reg. 51 78 (August 8, 2002), 69
Fed. Reg. 10171 (March 4, 2004), and 69 Fed. Reg. 60091 (Oct ber 7, 2004)). Certain
provisions of Delaware's hazardous waste management progr ,through the
authorizations referenced in the immediately preceding sentence, have become
requirements of Subtitle C of ReRA and are, accordingly, enforteable by EPA pursuant, I
to Section 3008('1) and (g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928('1) and ( .

I "

I "
\

I
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General Motors Corporation
Wilmington Assembly Plant
801 Boxwood Road
Wilmington, Delaware 19899
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ed and/or been the
\
,

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.
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11.

12.

13.

Pursuant to § 22.13(b) of the Consolidated Rules ofPractic ~ this CA and the attached FO
(hereinafter jointly referred to as this "CAPO") simultaneou ly commence and conclude
an administrative proceeding against Respondent, brought urder Section 3008(a) and (g)
of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and (g), to resolve alleged vi~lations ofRCRA and
DRGHW at Respondent's facility at 80! Boxwood Road, W lmington, Delaware, 19899
(the "Facility"). I ';

\ ;

For purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations set
forth in this CAPO. i

l
.

Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual all gations and conclusions of,
law set forth in this CA, except as provided in Paragraph 4, ave.I .
For the purposes of this proceeding only, Respondent agrees ot to contest EPA's

,

jurisdiction with respect to the execution and issuance of this APO, or the enforcement
ofthe CAFO. i
For purposes of this proceeding only, 'Respondent hereby exp~essly waives its right to
contest the allegations set forth in this CA and any right to ap eal the accompanying FO.

\ \

Respondent consents to the issuance of this CAFO and agrees to comply with its terms.

I \
Each party shall bear its own costs and attorney's fees in conn ction with this proceeding.

I "
. '

Notice of Action to the State of Delaware

I l:
EPA has given the State of Delaware, through the Delaware D partment ofNatural
Resources and Environmental Control ("DNREC"), prior notic of the initiation of this
action in accordance with Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(2).

\ \

II. FIND GS FA T A CO CLU IONS F W
I Ii

The United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") ahd EPA's Office of
Administrative Law Judges have jurisdiction over this matter pili-suant to RCRA Section
3008,42 U.S.C. § 6928, and the Consolidated Rules of Practice (40 C.F.R. §§ 22.l(a)(4)

, \

and 22.4(c)). \ \

Respondent, General Motors Corporation, is a "person" as defin. by RCRA Section
1004(15),42 U.S.C. § 6903(15), and DRGHW § 260.10.

At all times to the violations alleged herlin, Respondent has 0

\2
\
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person responsible for the overall operation of the General
Plant located in Wilmington, Delaware ("Facility").

CRA·03·2008·0130
I

otors Wilmington Assembly

14.

15.

16.

Respondent is and, at all times relevant to the violations alle ed herein, has been the
"owner" of the Facility as that term is defined by DRGHW §260.10.

Respondent is and, at all times relevant to the violations alleged herein, has been the
"operator" of the Facility as that term is defined by DRGH1'§ 260.10.

Respondent is and, at all times relevant to the violations alleged herein, has been a
"generator" of the materials described in paragraph 20 belowlwithin the meaning of
DRGHW § 260.10.

17. On August 17, 2006, representatives of EPA and the Delawar Department of Natural
Resources and Environmental Control ("DNREC") conducte an inspection of the
Facility. "

18. Respondent assembles and paints passenger cars at the Facili
manufacturing process consists of four major production dep
shop, general assembly and final repair.

Respondent's
ents: body shop, paint

19. Respondent's painting process involves the application ofpri er, basecoatand clearcoat
to the primary structures (Le., automobile body components) hich are subsequently used
in the final automobile assembly process of Respondent's man facturing operation at the
Facility. II

As part of its manufacturing process, Respondent generates w~e paint, waste primer,
waste solvent and waste c1earcoat which are all "solid wastes"· d "hazardous wastes"
within the meaning of DRGHW §§ 261.1 0 and 261.3 because ey are "solid wastes" that
exhibit the characteristic ofignitability (EPA Hazardous Waste Code DOOI) within the
meaning ofDRGHW § 261.21.

i
I

COUNT I II

(Owning and/or operating a hazardous waste storage facility without permit or interim status)
I
I

The allegations of Paragraphs 1 through 20 above, are incorporled by reference as
though fully set forth at length herein. !

I
Section 3005(a) and (e) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a) and (e), lflld DRGHW Part 122
provide, in pertinent part, that a person may not own or operate ahazardous waste
storage, treatment or disposal facility unless such person has firs I obtained a permit for
the facility or has qualified for interim status for the facility. I

22.

20.

21.

3
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ulation area located at or
ulate, DRGHW § 262.

D.

c.

B.

28.

DRGHW § 262.34(a) provides thata generator may accum ate hazardous wastes on-site
for 90 days or less without a permit or without interim statu provided that certain
conditions are met, including, inter alia, that the generator omplies with the
requirements for owners and operators in DRGHW Part 26 , Subpart D and that a
generator who accumulates such hazardous waste in contain rs must comply with the
applicable requirements of Subpart I ofDRGHW Part 265.

\

DRGHW § 262.34(c) provides that II person who generates hazardous waste may
accumulate the hazardous waste in c,ontainers in a satellite a!cumUlation area without
obtaining a permit or interim status provided, inter alia:

\

A. The amount accumulated in the satellite accumulatio area is no more than 55
gallons of hazardous waste, DRGHW § 262.34(c)(1);

I
The hazardous waste is acc~ulated in a satellite acc
near the point of generation where wastes initially acc
34(c)(l); \

I

Hazardous waste that is accumulated in amounts great r than 55 gallons is
handled in accordance with DRGHW § 262.34(a) or yother applicable
regulation for hazardous waste, DRGHW § 262.34(c)(ii); and

I
Containers used in a satellite accumulation area compl with DRGHW § 265.
173(a). \

Satellite Accumulation· Open Container '\

25. At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 17 2006, Respondent
accumulated rags, plastic, filter cartridges and other material c ntaminated with waste
clearcoat or waste solvent in containers identified by Responde t as "fire cans" in an area
identified by Respondent as the "Paint rvrix Room."

,

Respondent characterizes the rags, filt~r cartridges and other m terial contaminated with
waste clearcoat or waste solvent in the fire cans as Hazardous aste Code DOO I.

I
The rags, filter cartridges and other material contaminated with aste clearcoat or waste
solvent in the fire cans were "hazardouS wastes" as that term is efmed at DRGHW
§ 260.10 and § 261.3 because they exhibited the characteristic 0 ignitability within the
meaning ofDRGHW § 261.21. \

\

The fire cans used in the Paint Mix Room are emptied into a 55 allon satellite

26.

27.

24.

23.

4
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29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

accumulation drum located at the North End ofthe Paint M·. Room once a day
(hereinafter "Satellite Drum 1"). \

i
,

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 7, 2006, Satellite Drum I

:~~~~~~n;~~~;d for the "storage" of "hazardous wast

j
\' as those terms are defined

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 17,2006, there was a 55
gallon drum (hereinafter "Satellite Drum 2") in the Paint Mi~ Room in an area identified
by Respondent as the "System 22-Part B Clearcoat." I

I

I
At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August I ,2006, Respondent
accumulated rags, plastic, filter cartridges and other material ·.ontaminated with waste
clearcoat or waste solvent in Satellite Drum 2. \

The rags, filter cartridges and other material contaminated wi waste clearcoat or waste
solvent in Satellite Drum 2 were "hazardous wastes" as that tjrm is defined at DRGHW
§ 260.10 and § 261.3. i

\

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 11,2006, Satellite Drum 2
was a "container" used for the "storage" of"hazardous" as th se terms are defined at
DRGHW § 260.10. \

i.

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August I ·2006, there was a 55
gallon drum in the South End of the Paint Mix Room (herein er "Satellite Drum 3").
Satellite Drum 3 contained waste solvent. The waste solvent as a "hazardous waste"
because it exhibited the characteristic ofignitability within the. eaning ofDRGHW
§ 261.21. \

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 17,2006, Satellite Drum 3
was a "container" used for the "storage" of "hazardous waste" . those terms are defined
at DRGHW § 260.10.

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 17, 006, there was a 55
gallon drum containing rags, gloves, and filters contaminated w th waste clearcoat and
waste solvent in the South End of the Paint Mix Room near Tadks A and B (hereinafter
"Satellite Drum 4") and located approximately thirteen (13) feetaway from Satellite
Drum 3. !

i
The rags, gloves, and filters contaminated with waste c1earcoat ' d waste solvent in
Satellite Drum 4 were "hazardous waste" as that term is defined t DRGHW § 260.10 and
§ 261.3 because they exhibited the characteristic of ignitability'thin the meaning of

5
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DRGHW § 261.21.

CRA·03·200S.Q130

6

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

46.

Satellite Drum 4 was a "container" used for the "storage" of I'hazardous waste" as those
terms are defined at DRGHW §260.10.1

\

At the time ofthe EPA inspection of the Facility on August 7,2006, there were two 55
gallon drums in the area identified by Respondent as the "Fi 8J Repair Mix Room." One
of the two drums at this location contained paint cans, rags, loves and filters
contaminated with waste paint andlor waste solvent (hereinaier "Satellite Drum 5"). The
second 55 gaJlon drum at this location contained waste solve ,t and waste paint
(hereinafter "Satellite Drum 6"). . \

The paint cans, rags, gloves and filters contaminated with w~te paint andlor waste
solvent observed in Satellite Drum 5 and the waste paint and waste solvent observed in
Satellite Drum 6 were "hazardous wastes" as that term is defi ed at DRGHW § 260.10
and § 261.3 because they exhibited the characteristic of ignita~ilitywithin the meaning of

DRGHW § 261.21. \11,

Satellite Drums 5 and 6 were "containers" used for the "stora ~"of"hazardouswaste" as
those terms are defined at DRGHW § 260.10.

DRGHW §§ 262.34(a)(I)(i) and (c)(l)(i) incorporate by refere ce DRGHW § 265.173(a)
which provides that a container holding hazardous waste must 8Jways be closed during
storage, except when it is necessary to add or remove waste. i

I

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 17 '2006, Satellite Drum 6
I

was open at times other than necessary to add or remove wastes from Satellite Drum 6.

At the time of the EPA inSpection of the Facility on August 17'\\2006, Respondent failed
to qualify for the "satellite drum accumulation" exemption of9RGHW § 262.34(c) with
respect to Satellite Accumulation Drums 3 and 4 by failing to satisfy the conditions for
the exemption as set forth in DRGHW § 262.34(c), by accumul ting more than 55 gallons
of hazardous waste at anyone time in a satellite accumulation ea, specifically, the Paint
Mix. II

I
,

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 17, '006, Respondent failed
to qualify for the "satellite drum accumulation" exemption ofD~GHW § 262.34(c) with
respect to Satellite Accumulation Drums 6, by failing to satisfY ~he conditions for the
exemptions as set forth in DRGHW § 262.34(c)(l), because Resbondent did not keep
satellite Drum 6 closed except when adding or removing hazard<i>us waste.

I
I

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 17, 006, Respondent failed

\



IMO General Motors Corporation ~iCRA-03-2008-0t30

to qualifY for the "less than 90 day" 'generator accumulation .xemption of DRGHW
§ 262.34(a), by failing to satisfY the ,conditions for that exe ption as set forth in DRGHW
§ 262.34(a)( I)(i), because Respondent did not accwnulate hazardous waste in containers
(i.e., Satellite Accumulation Drum 6) which comply with th requirements of DRGHW
§ 265.173(a) regarding open containers. '

Contingency Plan

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

DRGHW § 262.34(a) provides that a generator may accumulfe hazardous wastes on-site
for 90 days or less without a permit o,r without interim status .rovided that, inter alia, the
generator complies with the requirements for owners and ope ators in DRGHW Part 265,
Subpart D, which includes DRGHW§ 265.51, which in turn~quireS that the owner or
operator have a contingency plan at the facility which is desi 'ed to minimize hazards to
hwnan health or the environment from fires, explosions, or y unplanned sudden or non
sudden release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste consti ents to air, soil, or surface

water. \ Ii
DRGHW Part 265, Subpart D includes DRGHW § 265.53, wI1ich requires that a copy of
the contingency plan and all revisions'to the plan must be mai+tained at the facility, and
submitted to all local police departments, fire departments, ho pitals, and State and local
emergency response teams that maybr called upon to provide '! mergency services.

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 17 2006, Respondent had not
submitted a copy of its revised contingency plan to aU local po ice departments, fire
departments, hospitals, and State and local emergency respons teams that may be called
upon to provide emergency services. \ i,

, 1
I .

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 17,2006, Respondent failed
to qualifY for the "less than 90 day" generator accumulation ex 'mption of DRGHW
§ 262.34(a) by failing to satisfY the conditions for the exemptio' as set forth in DRGHW
§ 262.34(a)(4), which refers to DRGHW Part 265, Subpart D, ,hich, in turn, includes
DRGHW § 265.51 and 53. 1 i

\ I
Respondent does not have, and never had, a permit or interim st tus pursuant to DRGHW
§ 122.1(c), or Section 3005(a) of RCRA, 42 V.S.c. § 6925(a), r the storage of
hazardous waste at the Facility. \ \

The Facility is a hazardous waste treatment, storage or disposal' facility", as that term is
defined by DRGHW § 260.10. i.

53, Respondent was required by DRGHW §\ 122.l(c) and Section 3

17
!

5(a) ofRCRA, 42
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i

53. Respondent was required by DRGHW § 122.1(c) and Sectio 3005(a) ofRCRA, 42
U.S.C. § 6925(a), to obtain a pennit for its hazardous waste torage activities described in
this Count. 'I

54. Respondent violated DRGHW § 122.l(c) and Section 3005( ) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 6925(a) by operating a hazardous waste storage facility wi out a pennit or interim
status.

COUNT II
(Contingency Plan)

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

The allegations of Paragraphs I through 54, above, are inco orated by reference as
though fully set forth at length herein. I

DRGHW § 264.51 requires that the owner or operator of a hllj!:ardous waste facility must
have a contingency plan for the facility which is designed to minimize hazards to human
health or the environment from fires, explosions, or any unplainned sudden or non-sudden
release ofhazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents tot' soil, or surface water.

,

DRGHW § 264.53 requires that a copy of the contingency pi and all revisions to the
plan must be maintained at the facility, and submitted to allioal police departments, fire
departments, hospitals, and State and local emergency respons teams that may be called
upon to provide emergency services. i

i
,

As the owner and/or operator of a hazardous waste manageme t facility, Respondent was
required by DRGHW §§ 264.51 and 264.53 to have a contingency plan for the Facility
and to submit a copy and all revisions of the contingency plan 0 all local police
departments, fire departments, hospitals, and State and local e ergency response teams
that may be called upon to provide emergency services. 'i

At the time of the EPA inspection of the Facility on August 17, 2006, Respondent had not
submitted a copy of its revised contingency plan to all local pol ce departments, fire
departments, hospitals, and State and local emergency response teams that may be called
upon to provide emergency services. .

Respondent violated DRGHW § 264.53(b), by failing to submit a copy of its revised
contingency plan to all local police departments, fire departments, hospitals, and State
and local emergency response teams that may be called upon to rovide emergency
services at the Facility.

8



[MO General Motors Corporation

COUNTIII
(Management of Containers)

CRA·03·2008-0130

61. The allegations of Paragraphs I through 60, above, are inco
though fully set forth at length herein.

orated by reference as

I
62. DRGHW § 264. I73(a) requires that a container holding hazdous waste must always be

closed during storage, except when it is necessary to add or r move waste.
I .

, I

63. Respondent violated DRGHW § 264. I73(a), by failing to ke a container, Satellite
Drum 6, holding hazardous waste at the Facility closed at all times during storage, except
when it was necessary to add or remove waste, for which a p ,alty may be assessed
pursuant to Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6928.

IV. CIVIL PENALTY

64. Respondent agrees to pay a civil penalty in the amount ofS92f'OO, which Respondent
agrees to pay in accordance with the terms set forth below. SlCh civil penalty amount
shall become due and payable immediately upon Respondent' receipt of a true and
correct copy of this CAFO fully executed by all parties and fil d with the Regional
Hearing Clerk. In order to avoid the assessment of interest, +inistrative costs, and late
payment penalties in connection with such civil penalty as desyribed in this CAFO,
Respondent must pay the civil penalty no later than thirty (30) ~alendar days after the date
on which a copy of this CAFO is mailed or hand-delivered toespondent.

! i
65. Having determined that this Consent Agreement is in accordan' e with law and that the

civil penalty amount was determined after consideration of the statutory factors set forth
in Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), which inclu e the seriousness of the
violation and any good faith efforts to comply with the applicable requirements, EPA
hereby agrees and acknowledges that payment of the civil penalty shall be in full and final
satisfaction of all civil claims for penalties for the violations all, ged in this CAPO.

I

66. Respondent shall remit the payment for the civil penalty specifi d in Paragraph 64 above,
payable to United States Treasury, using one of the payment mthods set forth below:

!
,

By regular U.S. Postal Service:

United States Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077

9
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St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

For overnight deliveries. street address:

United States Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
U.S. Bank
1005 Convention Plaza
Mail Station SL-MO·C2GL
St. Louis, MO 6310 I
Contact: Natalie Pearson
314-418-4087

Wire transfers:

!
RCRA-03-2008-0130
I
,,

Federal Reserve Bank of New York
ABA =.021030004
Account = 68010727
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33
33 Liberty Street
New York NY 10045
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 En ironmental Protection
Agency"

PNC Bank
ABA = 051036706
Transaction Code 22 -checking
Account 310006
CTXFormat
Environmental Protection Agency
808 l7th Street NW
Washington DC 20074
Contact: Jesse White 301-887-6548

On-Line Payment:

www.pa.y.gov
Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field, open form and complete the required e1ds

Ii
All payments by Respondent shall reference its name and address and t e Docket Numbers of

10
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this action (RCRA-03-2008-0130).

CRA-03-2008-0IJO

At the time of payment, Respondent shall send a notice of such pa ent, including a copy of any
check or electronic transfer, as appropriate, to:

Lydia Guy
Regional Hearing Clerk
U.S. Environmental Protection Agenc
Region TIl (Mail Code 3RCOO)
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

and

Joyce A. Howell
Senior Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region III (Mail Code 3WC31)
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

67.

68.

69.

70.

Respondent agrees not to deduct for civil taxation purposes th civil penalty specified in
this Consent Agreement and the attached Final Order.

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, EPA is e titled to assess interest and
late payment penalties on outstanding debts owed to the Unite States and a charge to
cover the costs ofprocessing and handling a delinquent claim, more fully described
below. Accordingly, Respondent's failure to make timely pa ent as specified in this
CAFO shall result in the assessment of late payment charges in luding interest, penalties,
andlor administrative costs ofhandling delinquent debts. i

\

Interest on the civil penalty assessed in this CAFO will begin to accrue on the date that a
copy of this CAFO is mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent. However, EPA will not
seek to recover interest on any amount of the civil penalty that i~ paid within thirty (30)
calendar days after the date on which such interest begins to accrue. Interest will be
assessed at the rate of the United States Treasury tax and loan rl~.e in accordance with 40
C.F.R. § 13.11(a). i

i
,

The costs of the EPA's administrative handling of overdue debt~will be charged and
assessed monthly throughout the period the debt is overdue. 40 C.F.R. § 13.l1(b).
Pursuant to Appendix 2 ofEPA's Resources Management Direc ives - Cash

:.

11
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I
,

Management, Chapter 9, EPA will assess a $15.00 adrninisative handling charge for
administrative costs on Wlpaid penalties for the first thirty ( 0) day period after the
payment is due and an additional $15.00 for each subsequen thirty (30) days the penalty
remains Wlpaid. A penalty charge of six percent per year wi I be assessed monthly on any
portion of the civil penalty which remains delinquent more an ninety (90) calendar
days. 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(c). Should assessment of the penal~ charge on the debt be
required, it shall accrue from the first day payment is delinq ent. 31 C.F.R. § 901.9(d).

V. OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS
i

71. Nothing in this CAFO shall relieve Respondent of any duties otherwise imposed upon it
by applicable federal, state, or local law and/or regulation.

VI. PARTIES BOUND

72. This Consent Agreement and the accompanying Final Order all apply to and be binding
upon the EPA, the Respondent, Respondent's officers and dir ctors (in their official
capacity) and Respondent's successors and assigns. By his or her signature below, the
person signing this Consent Agreement on behalf of Respondent acknowledges that he or
she is fully authorized to enter into this Consent Agreement Id to bind the Respondent
to the terms and conditions of this Consent Agreement and th accompanying Final
Order.

VII. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

73. Full payment of the civil penalty set forth in Paragraph 64 oftljis Consent Agreement,
above, shall resolve only Respondent's liability for federal civil penalties for the specific
violations ofRCRA Subtitle C, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-693ge, and ~e Delaware Regulations
Governing Hazardous Waste alleged herein. In addition, this settlement is subject to all
limitations on the scope ofresolution and to the reservation of tights set forth in the
Consolidated Rules of Practice at 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(c). Compl+nant reserves any rights
and remedies available to it Wlder RCRA, the regulations promf/gated thereWlder, and
any other federal laws or regulations for which Complainant haf jurisdiction, to enforce
the provisions of this CAFO, following its filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

VII. EFFECTIVE DATE

74. The effective date of this CAFO is the date on which it is filed ·th the Regional Hearing
Clerk after signature by the Regional Judicial Officer or Region 1Administrator.

12
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By:
Name:
Title:

By:

R bert F. Dolan
Plant Manager

LMOTORS CORPORATION: .
I

Date: ~l'2; 67"

Date: ~-----t----
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By:

For Complainant, United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region III:

, ) i

• / /l.Date: c.;/t;b~dr-

ent Division

By:
VAbraham Ferdas

Direct~r

Waste imd Chemicals Manage

After reviewing the foregoing this Partial Consent Agreeme t and other pertinent.
information, the Director, Waste and Chemicals Management Divis' n, EPA Region III,
recommends that the Regional Administrat~r or the Regional Judici I Officer issue the Final
Order attached hereto. I

Iiulor
Date

14



BEFORE THE UNITED STATES "
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AG NCY

REGION III
1650 Arl:h Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

In the Matter of:

GENERAL MOTORS CORPORATION

Respondent.

General Motors Corporation
Wilmington Assembly Plant
801 Boxwood Road
Wilmington, Delaware 19899

Facility

i '

FINAL ORDER i

\
)

- '"
EPA Docket No. RCRA-03-20084J,130

i
r

FINAL ORDER

Complainant, the Director of the Waste and Chemicals Manag ment Division, U.S.

Environmental Protection Agency, Region III, and Respondent, Gener Motors Corporation,
,

have executed a document entitled "Consent Agreement," which I her by ratifY in accordance
I

with the Consolidated Rules ofPractice Governing the Administrative Assessment ofCivil

Penalties and the Revocation! Termination or Suspension ofPermits ( Consolidated Rules of
I

Practice"), 40 C.F.R. Part 22. The terms of the foregoing Consent Agr ement are accepted by the
I

undersigned and incorporated into this Final Order as iffully set forth t length herein.
I

NOW, THEREFORE, PURSUANT TO Section 3008(a) of the esource Conservation

Md "",,"" A" of 1976, M =,ruIoI by, hu~.", d. H-'om., Solid WM"

Amendments of 1984 (RCRA), 42 U.S.C. Section 6928(a), and the COJolidated Rules of

Practice, and having determined, on the basis of the parties' representations in the Consent
I



Agreement, that the penalty agreed to therein by the parties is based on a consideration of the
,

factors set forth in Section 3008(a)(3) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928( )(3), it is hereby ordered that

Respondent pay $929.00 in accordance with the Consent Agreemen and comply with the terms

and conditions of this Consent Agreement.

The effective date of this Final Order is upon filing with the egional Hearing Clerk.

i
,~

Re ee Saraj ian
Regional Judicial Office
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James Walle, Esq.
General Motors Legal Staff
300 Renaissance Center
Mail Code 482 C24 024
Detroit, MI48243-3000
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